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£y UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
M'. 8 REGION 5
d? 77 WEST JACKSON BOULEVARD
40 prt S | o CHICAGO, IL. 80604-3550
AUG 202012
REF;LY TO THE ATTENTION QF:
' SC-57
CERTIFIED MAIL
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED
Mr. Mark T. Mahlberg
Mahlberg, Brandt, Gilbert, & Thompson
The Lawyers Building
715 Court Sireet
Saginaw, Michigan 48602
Re: Sasinaw Charter Township Wastewater Treatment Plant. Saginaw, Michigan

‘Consent Agreement and Final Order.
Docket No. CAA-05-2012-0045

Dear Mr. Mahlberg:

Enclosed please find a fully executed Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAFO) in resolution
the above case. U.S. EPA has filed the original CAFO with the Regional Hearing Clerk on
Wq us"’ 20,2tz . Please inform your client of their obligation to pay a civil penalty in

the Amount of $8,500 in the manner prescribed in paragraphs 38-43 and please note that your

. client must reference their check with the number BD Z751203A040 and docket

number. In addition, please perform the Supplemental Environmental Project (SEP) in the
manner prescribed in paragraphs 44-60.

Please feel free to contact Monika Chrzaszez at (312) 886-0181 if you have any questions
regarding the enclosed documents. . Please direct any legal questions to Louise Gross, Regional
Counsel, at (312) 886-6844. Thank you for your assistance in resolving this matter.

Sincerely yours,

ra

] £ [ 2
()jl/z:\& G e
Michael E. Hans, Chief '

Chemical Emergency
Preparedness & Prevention Sectlon

‘Enclosure

ce. Louise Gross, ORC
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

REGION 5
IN THE MATTER OF:’ )  Docket No. CAA-05-2012-0045 -
. )
Saginaw Charter Township )  Proceeding to Assess a Civil Penalty
Saginaw, Michigan 48638 )  under Section 113(d) of the Clean Air
)  Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(d)
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EPA ID: 10000146898 ) _ N
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REGIONAL HEARING CLERK
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TION AGENCY, -
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Consent Aoreement and Final Order

Preliminary Statement

1. This is an administrative action commenced and concluded under Section 113(d) of
.the Clean Air Act (the Act), 42 U.S.C. § 7413(d), and Sections 22.1(a)(2), 22.13(b), and
22.18(b)(2) and (3) of the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative
Assessment of Civil Penalties and the Revocatg‘on/T ermination or Sﬂspension of Permits
(Consolidated Rﬁles), as codified at 40 CFR Part 22, for violations of Section 112(r) of the Act,
42 U.S.C. § 7412(r), and its implementing regulations.

2. Complainant is the Director of the Superfund Division, United States Environ.mentél
Protection Agency (U.S. EPA), Région 5.

3. Respondent is the Saginaw Charter Township, a municipality in the State of
Michigaﬁ.

4.  Where the parties agree to settle one or more causes of action before the ﬁlingl ofa
complaint, the administrative action may be commenced and concluded simultaneoﬁsly by the

issuance of a consent agreement and final order (CAFO). 40 CF.R. § 22.13(b).



5. The parties agree that settling this action without the filing of a complaint or the
adjudiéation of any issue of fact or law is in their interest and in the public interest.

6. Respondent consents to entry of this CAFO and the assessment of the specified civil
penalty, and agrees to comply with the terms of the CAFO.

Jurisdiction and Waiver of Right to Hearing

7.  Respondent admits the jurisdictional allegations in this CAFO and neither admits
nor &enies the factual allegations in the CAFO.

8. Respondent waiyes its right to request a hearing as provided at 40 C.F.R. § 22.15(c),
any right to contest the allégations in tlus CAFO, and its right to appeal this CAFO.

Statutory and Regulatory Backgroand

9. In accordance with Section 112(r) of the Act; 42 U.S.C. § 7412(x), on Junc 20,
1996, U.S. EPA promulgated regulations to prevent accidental releases of regulated substances
and minimize the conse_queﬁées of those‘releases that do occur. These reguiations, known as the -
Chemicai Accident Prevention Program (CAPP) regulations, are codified at 40 C.I'R. Part 68.

10.  Asprovided at 40 C.F.R. § 68.10(a), the CAPP regulations apply to all stationary
sources that‘have more than a threshold quantity of a regulated substance in a process. The List
- of Regulated Toxié Substances and Threshold Quantities for Accideﬁtal Release Prevention is
codified at 40 C.F.R. § 68.130. Procedures to determine whether a threshold quantity of a
regulated substance is present in a process at a stationary source are codified at 40 C.F.R.
§ 68.115. | |

11. ~ Asdefined at 40 C.F.R.§ 68.3, “process” means any activity involving a regulated

substance including any use, storage, manufacturing, handling, on-site movement of such



substances, or combination of these activities. For the purpbses of this definition, any group of
vessels that are interconnected, or separate vessels that are located such that regulated subsfances
could be involved in a potential reléase, shall bé considered ﬁ single process.

12. Asdefined at 40 C.F.R. § 68.3, “stationary source” means any buildings,
structures, equipment, installations, or substance emitting stationary activities which belong to
the same industrial group, which are located on one or more contiguous properties, Whjcﬁ are
under the control of the satﬁs person, and from which an accidental release may occur.

13.  According to 40 CFR § 68.12(a), the owner or operator of a stationary source
subject to the requirenients of 40 C.F.R. Part 68 must submit a single Risk Management Plan
 (RMP), as provided in 40 C.FR. §§ 68.150 to 68.185.

14. . Under 40 C.F.R. §§ 68.10(a) and 68.150, the owner or operator of a stationary
| S_ourqe subject to th;z requirements of 40 C.F.R. Part 68 must submit the RMP no later than the

latest of the following dates: June 21, 1999; thiee years after the date on which the regulated
- substance is first listed under 40 C.I'.R. § 68.130; or ﬁw date on which a regulated substance is
first present in more than a threshold quanti;[y ina procesé.

15.  ~ Under 40 C.F.R. § 68.10, covered processes are subjected to one of three sets of
program requirements: Program 1 eligibility reqmremehts ; Program 2 eligibiﬁty reqﬁirements; or
Program 3 eligibility requirements.

16.  Under 40 C.F.R. § 68.10(d), Program 3 applies to a process that (1) does not meet -
the requirements of Program 1 eligibility, as set forfh at 40 CF.R. § 68.10(b), and (2) is subject
to the OSHA Process Safety Management (PSM) standard set forth at 29 C.F.R.

§ 1910.119.



17. Under40 C.ER.§ 68.10(b), Program 1 applies to a process that meets all the
folloWing requiremeﬁts: (1) for the five years priot to the submission of an RMP, the process has
not had an accidental release of a regulated substance where exposuie to the substance, its
reaction products, over-pressure generated by an explosion involving the. substance, or radiant
heat generated by a fire involving the substance led to off-site death, injury, or response or
~ restoration activities for an exposure of an environmental receptor; (2) the distance to a toxic or
flammable endpoint for a worst-case release assessment conducted under 40 C.F.R. § 68.25 ié
less than the distance to any public receptor; and (3) emergency response proceciures have been
coordinated between the stationary source and iocal.emergency planning and response
§rganizations.

18.  The OSHA PSM standard applies to a process which involves a chemical at or
above the threshold quantities listed in Appendix A of 29 C.F.R. § 1910.119.

19.  The general reqmrements at40 CFR.§ 68 12(d)(2) require that the owner or
operator of a stationary source with a process subject to Program 3 requirements conduct a
hazard assessment as provided in 40 C.F.R. §§ 68.20 througﬁ 68.42, implement the prevention
requirements of 40 CFR. §§ 68.6-5 through 68.87, develop and implement an emergency
response program as provided in 407 C.F.R. §§ 68.90 through 68.95.

20.  Under Section 113(d)(1) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(d)(1), and 40 C.F.R.

Part 19, the Administrator of U.S. EPA (Administrator) may assess a civil penalty of up to
$27,500 per day of violation of the Act, up to a total of $220,000, for violations that occurted on
or after January 31, 1997; through March 15, 2004, may assess a civil penalty of up to $32,500

per day of violation, up to a total of $270,000, for violations that occurred after March 15, 2004,



through January 12, 2009; and may assess a civil penalty of up to $37,500 per day of violation up
to a total of $295,000, for violations that occurred .after January 12, 2009.

21, Section 113(d)(1) limits the Administrator’s authority to matters where the first
alleged date of violation occurred no more than 12 months prior to initiation of the
administrative action, except where the Administrator and Attorney General of the United States
jointly determine that a matter involving a longer period of violation is appropriate for an
administrative penalty action. | |

79 The Administrator and the Attorney General of the United States, each through
their respecﬁve delegates, have determined jointly that an administrative penalty action is -

appropriate for the period of violations alleged in this complaint.

Factual Allegations and Alleged Violations

23. Respohdent is a Michigan municipality. The Respondent’s wastewater treatment
facility is located at 5790 West Michigan, Saginaw, Michigan 48638.

24.  Respondent is a “person,” as defined at Section 302(e) of the Act, 42 US.C.
§ 7602(e). |

25. At all times relevant to this CAFO, the Respondent’s Department of Public
Services has operated the municipal wastewater treatment facility. |

26. The facility is a “stationary source,” as that term is defined at 40 C.F.R. § 68.3.

27.  Respondent is the “owner or operator” of the fécility, as defined at Section
112(a)(9) of the Act;42 U.S.C. § 7412(2)(9).

28. | Respondent’s use and storage of anhydrous ammonia is a “process,” as defined at

40 CFR. §68.3,



29.  Anhydrous ammonia is listed as'a regulated toxic substance in Tables 1 and 2 of
40 C.F.R. § 68.130.

30.  Anhydrous ammoniais a “fegulate;d substance,” as that term is defined in Section
112(r)(2) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7412(x)(2) and 40 C.F.R. § 68.3.

31.  The “threshold quantity” (as that term is defined in 40 C.F.R. § 68.3) for
anhydrous ammonia is 10,000 ijounds, as listed in 40 C.F.R. § 68.130, Tables 1 and 2.

32. - Atall times relevant fo this CVAFO, Respondent had present at its facility an
amount of anhydrous ammonia greater than 10,000 pounds.

33.  The distance from the facility to a toxic or flammable endpoint for a worst-case
release assessment conducted under 40 C.F.R. § 68.25 is greater than the distance to any public
receptor.

34.  Respondent’s process is subject to the OSHA PSM standard set forth at 29 CFR
§1910.119.

35.  OnJune 24, 1999, Respondent submitted an initiai RMP for the process, which
indicated the process is subject to the Program 3 eligibility requirements.

36.  OnJuly 15, 2009, an authorized representative of U.S. EPA conducted a
compliance inspection at the facility to determine Respondent’s compliance with the Risk
Management Program regulations.

37.  Based on the inspection, U.S. EPA alleges that Respondent has committed the
following violations: |

a. The owner or operator failed to document other pérsons responsible for
implementing individual requirements of the risk management program and define the lines of

authority through an organization chart or similar document, in violation of 40 C.F.R. § 68.15(c).



b. The owner or operators failed to estimate population that would be included in the
distance to the endpoint in the RMP based on a circle with the point of release at the center, in
violation of 40 C.F.R. § 68.30 (a).

c. The owner or operator failed to use the most recent Census data, or (Sther updated
information to estimaté the population, in violation of 40 C.F.R. § 68.30(c).

d. The owner or operator failgd to identify environmental receptors that would be
included in the distance to the endpoint based on a circle-with the point of release at the center, in
Violafion of 40 C.F.R. § 68.33(a).

e. | The dwner or operator failed to rely on information provided on loc&ﬁ J.5.G.S.
maps, or on any data source containing U.S.G.S. data to identify énvironmental feceptors, in
violation of 40 C.F.R. § 68.33(b).

f. The owner or operator failed to review and update the offfsite consequence
analyses at least once every five years, in violation of 40 C.FR. § 68.36(a). |

g. 'The owner or operator failed to maintain data used to estimate population and
environmental receptors pbtentially affected, in violation of 40 C.F.R § 68.39(e).

h. The owner or operator failed to establish a s;ystem to promptly address the team’s
findings and recommendation from their Process Hazard Amnalysis (PHA) cénducted; assure that
recommendations are resolved in a timely manner and documented; document what actions are
to be taken; develop a written schedule of when these actions are to be completed; and
communicate the actions to operating, maintenance, and other employees whose work
assignments are in the process and who may be affected by the recommendations, in violation of

40 C.F.R. § 68.67(e).



i The owner or operator failed to update and revalidate their PHA by a team every
five ﬁrears after the completion of the initial PHA to assure t.hat‘the PHA is consistent with the
cutrent process, in violation of 40 C.F.R. § 68.67(f). |

- | The owner or operator failed to retain PHAs and updates or revalidations for each
process covered, as well as the resolution of recommendations for the life of the process, in -
violation.of 40 C.F.R. § 68.67(g).

k. The owner or operatbr failed to certify annually that the operating procedures are
current and accurate and that procedures have been reviewed as often as necessary, in violation
of 40 C.E.R. § 68.69(c).

L The owner or operator failed to certify that the stationary'source has evaluated
compliance with the provisions of the prevention program at least every three years to certify
that the develoi)ed procedures and practices are adequate and being followed, in violation of 40
C.F.R. § 68.79(a). |

m. The owner or operator failed to submit a single registration form that included the
correct maximum quantity of each regulated substance in a process (in pounds), in violation of -
40 C.FR. § 68.160(b)(7).

Civil Pena‘}g

38. Based on analysis of the factors specified in Section 113(e) of the Act, 42 U.S.C.

§ 7413(e), the facts of this case, Respondent’s agreement to perform a supplemental
environmental project and other factors such as cooperation and prompt compliance,
Complainant has determined that an appropriate civil penalty to settle this action is $8,500.00.

39. Within 30 days after the effective date of this CAFO, Respondent must pay a

$8,500.00 civil penalty by sending a cashier’s or certified check by regular U.S. Postal Service



payable to the “Treasurer, United States of America,” to:

U.S. EPA

Fines and Penalties
Cincinnati Finance Center
P.O. Box 979077

St. Louis, MO 63197-9000

The check must note the case name, docket number of this CAFO and the biliillg document
number.

40. A transmittal letter stating Respondent’s name, complete address, the case docket
number, and the billing document numbé_r must acc;)mpany the payment. Respondent must send
a copy of the ;:heck and transmittal Jetter to: |

Attn: Regional Hearing Clerk, (E-197)

1.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5
77 West Jackson Blvd.

Chicago, IL 60604

Monika Chrzaszez, (SC-31)
Chemical Emergency Preparedness
and Prevention Section
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5
77 West Jackson Blvd.
Chicago, IL 60604

Louise Gross, (C-14J})
Office of Regional Counsel
15.8. Bnvironmental Protection Agency, Region 5
77 West Jackson Blvd.
Chicago, IL 60604
41. This civil penalty is not deductible for federal tax purposes.
42. If Respondent does not pay timely the civil penalty, or any stipulated penalties due
under paragraph 55, beléw, U.S. EPA may bring an action to collect any unpaid portion of the

penalty with interest, handling charges, nonpayment penalties and the United States”

enforcement expenses for the collection action under Section 113(d)(5) of the Act, 42 U.S.C.



§ 7413(d)(5). The validity, amount, and appropriatenes.s of the civii penalty are not reviewabl.e'
in a collection action.

43. Pursuantto 31 C.F.R. §901.9, Réspondent must pay the following on any amount
overdue under this CAFO. Interest will accrue on any overdue amount from the déte payment
was due at a rate established by the S.ecretary of the Treasury. Respondent must pay a $15
handiing (iharge each month that any portion of the penalty is more than 30 days ﬁast due. Tn
addition, Respondent must péy a quarterly nonpayment penalty each quarter during which t_hé
assessed penalty is overdue according to Section 113(d)(5) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(d)(5).
This nonpayment penalty will be 10 percent of the aggregate amount of the outstanding penalties

and nonpayment pénalties acerued from the beginning of the quarter.

Supplemental Environmental Projeet

44. Respondént must complete a supplemental environmental project (SEP) at its
wastewater treatment facility desigried to protect the environment and public health by reducing
the amount of chlorine on site to no more than 2,500 pounds. See 4Q C.F.R. §68.130.

45. At its wastewater treatment facility, Respondent must complete the SEP by retro-
fitting the existing pre-treatment chlorine system with a new sodium hypochloﬁte'system (the
system) no later September 30, 2012.

46. Respondent must spend at least $30,851.00 to design, purchase and install thé
| system.

47. Respondent must continuously use or operate the system for at least five years
following its installation.

48. Respondent certifies that it is not required to perform or develop this SEP by any

law, regulation, grant, order, or agreement, or as injunctive relief as of the date it signs this

10



| CAFO. Respondent further certifies that it has not received, and is not negotiating to receive,
credit for the SEP in any other enforcement action.
49. U.S. EPA may inspect the facility at any time to monitor Respondent’s compliance
with this CAFO’s SEP requirementé. |
50. Respondent must submit a SEP completion report to U.S. EPA within 90 deys of the
completion of the installation. This report must contain the following information:
a. Detailed descnptlon of the SEP as completed

b. Description of any operating problems and the actions taken to correct the
problems; .

¢c. Itemized costs of goods and services used to complete the SEP documented by
~ copies of invoices, purchase orders, or cancelled checks that specifically
identify and iternize the individual cost of the goods and services;

d. Cettification that Respondent has completed the SEP in compliance with this
CAFOQO; and

e. Description of the environmental and public health benefits resulting from the
SEP. '

51. Respondent must submit all notices and reports required by this CAFO by first class

mail to:

Monika Chrzaszez, (SC-5J)
Chemical Emergency Preparedness
and Prevention Section
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Reglon 5
77 West Jackson Blvd.
Chicago, II. 60604

52. - In the report that Respondent submits as provided by this CAFO, it must certify that
the report is true and complete by including the following statement signed by one of its officers:
I certify that I am familiar with the information in this document and that, based
on my inquiry of those individuals responsible for obtaining the information, it

is true and complete to the best of my knowledge. Iknow that there are
significant penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility

11



of fines and imprisonment for knowing violations.

53. F_ollowing receipt of the SEP completion report described in paragraph 50,' above,

1.S. EPA must notify Respondent in writing that:

a.

b.

It has sansfactonly completed the SEP and the SEP report;

There are deficiencies in the SEP as completed or in the SEP report and
U.S. EPA will give Respondent 30 days to correct the deficiencies; or

It has not satisfactorily completed the SEP or the SEP report and U.S. BPA will
seek stipulated penalties under paragraph 55.

54. IfU.S. EPA exercises option b, above, Respondent may object in writing to the

deficiency notice within 10 days of receiving the notice. The parties will have 30 days from

U.S. EPA’s receipt of Respondént’s objection to reach an agreement. If the parties cannot reach

an agreement, U.S. EPA will give Respondent a written decision on its objection. Respondent

will comply with any requirement that U.S. EPA imposes in its decision. If Respondent does not

complete the SEP as required by U.S. EPA’s decision, Respondent will pay stipulated penalties

to the United States under paragraph 55, below.

55. If Respondent violates any requirernent of this CAFQ relating to the SEP,

Respondent must pay stipulated penalties to the United States as follows:

a. If Respondent ‘spent less on the SEP than the amount set forth in paragraph 46,

above, Respondent must pay a stipulated penalty equal to the difference
between the amount it spent on the SEP and the amount set forth in paragraph
46.

If Respondent has completed the SEP but the SEP is not satisfactory,
Respondent must pay $5,000 1 in addition to any penalty required under
subparagraph 38 above. :

If Respondent halts or abandons work on the SEP, Respondent must pay a
stipulated penalty of $15,000 in addition to any penalty required under
subparagraph 38 above. The penalty will accrue as of the date for completing

- the SEP or the date performance ceases, whichever is earlier.

12



d. Tf Respondent fails to comply with the schedule in paragraph 45 above for
implementing the SEP, or fails to submit timely the SEP completion report
required by paragraph 50 above, Respondent must pay stipulated penalties for
each failure to meet an applicable milestone, as follows:

Penalty per violation per day Period of violation
$100 1% through 14™ day
$250 - ~ 15™ through 30™ day
$500 . 31* day and beyond

These penalties will accrue from the date Reépondent was required to meet each milestone until
it achieves compliance with the milestone.

56. U.S‘. EPA’s detemﬁnatlion of whether Respondent satisfactorily completed the SEP
and whether Respondent made good faith and tirneh;f efforts to-conil.alete the SEP will bind
Respondent. |

57. Respondent must pay any stipulated penalties within 15 days of receiving
- U.S. EPA’s written demand for the penalties. . Respondent will use the method of payment
specified iﬁ paragraph 39 above and will pay interest, handling charges, and nonpayment
penalties on anjr overdue amounts as specified in paragraph 43.

58. Any public statement that Respondent makes referring to the.SEP must iﬁclude the
following language, “The Saginaw Charter Township Wastewater Treatment Plant undertook
this project under the settlement of the United States Environmental Protection Agency’s
enforcement action against the Saginaw Chzirter Township for violations of Section 112(r) of the
Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7412(r).” |

59. If an event occurs Wn;vhich causes or may cause a delay in completing the SEP as‘
required by this CAFO:

| a-. Respondent must notify U.S. EPA in writing within 10 days after learning of an

event which caused or may cause a delay in completing the SEP. The notice

must describe the anticipated length of the delay, its cause(s), Respondent’s
past and proposed actions to prevent or minimize the delay, and a schedule to

13



carry out those actions. Respondent must take all reasonable actions to avoid or
minimize any delay. If Respondent fails to notify U.S. EPA according to this
paragraph, Respondent will not receive an extension of time to complete the
SEP.

b. If the parties agree that circumstances beyond the control of Respondent caused
* or may cause a delay in completing the SEP, the parties will stipulate to an
extension of time no longer than the period of delay.

¢. IfU.S. EPA does not agree that circumstances beyond the control of -
Respondent caused or may delay in completing the SEP, U.S. EPA will notify
Respondent in writing of its decision and any delays in completing the SEP will
not be excused. '

d. Respondent has the burden of proving that circumstances beyond its control
caused or may cause a delay in completing the SEP. Increased costs for
completing the SEP will not be a basis for an extension of time under
subparagraph b, above. Delay in achieving an interim step will not necessarily
justify or excuse delay in achieving subsequent steps.

60. For federal income tax purposes, Respondent will neither capitalize into inventory

or basis, nor deduct any costs or expenditures incurred in performing the SEP.

General Provisions

61. This CAFO resolves oﬁly Respondent’s liability for federal civil penalties for the
violations alleged in this CAFO.

62. The CAFO cioes not affect the right of U.S. EPA or the United States to pursue
appropriate injunctive or other equitable relief or criminal sanctions for any Violatién of law.

63. This CAFO does not affect Respondent’é responsibility to comply with the Act and
other applicable'fe&erai, state, and local laws. Except as provided in paragraph 61, above,
complance with this CAFO will not be a defense to any actions subsequently commenced
pursuant to federal laws administered by Complainant. .

64. Respondent certifies that it is complying fully with Sécﬁon 112(r) of the Act, 42

US.C. § 7412(r).

14



B 65. This CAFO constitutes an “enforcement response” as that term is used in
U.S. EPA’s Clean Air Act Stationary Source Civil Penalty Poficy to determine Respondent’s
“full compliance history” under Section 113(e) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(g).
66. The terms of _this CAFO bind Respondent, its successors, and assigns.
67. Each person signing this consent agreement certifies that he or she has the authority
to sign for the party whom he or she repre.sents and to bind that party to its terms.
68. Each party agrees to bear its own costs and attorneys’ fees in this action.

69. This CAFO constitutes the entirc agreement between the parties.

15



CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER

In the Matter of: Saginaw Charter Township Wastewater Treatment Plant
Saginaw, Michigan

Docket No.

Saginaw Charter Township, Respondent

o-Aald - 1 ‘ @Wo‘% %rxe@.sa.,

Date Name: Rob Grose

Title:  Tonager

United States Environmental Protection Agency, Complainant

: ) A e? g
Dateg % Richard Kdt 1rector

f ¢ Superfund Division
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CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER
In the Matter of: Saginaw Charter Township Wastewater Treatment Plant,

Saginaw, Michigan
Docket No.

CAA-05-2012-0045

Final Order

This Consent Agreement -a,nd Final Order, as agreed to by the parties, shall become

effective immediately upon filing with the Regional Hearing Clerk. This Final Order concludes

this proceeding pﬁrsuant to 40 C.F.R. §§ 22.18 and 22.31.. IT IS SO ORDERED.

F- /612

Date

5;,4@

Susan Hedman

Regional Administrator

U.S. Environmental Protection
Agency, Region 5

Rrﬁﬂhg\ n HP\‘“’N"‘ CLERK
NMENTAL
| AGENCY
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